ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 12, 2013
9:01 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Fred Dyson, Chair

Senator Cathy G essel, Vice Chair
Senat or John Coghi | |

Senator Bert Stedman

Senator Bill W el echowski

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 46

"An Act relating to regulations adopted by the Departnent of
Adm nistration waiving the comercial notor vehicle driving
skills test for certain drivers with mlitary comrercial notor
vehi cl e experience. "

- MOVED HB 46 QUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BI LL NO. 48

"An Act requiring each nunicipality with a population that
decreased by nore than 25 percent between 2000 and 2010 that
participates in the defined benefit plan of the Public
Enpl oyees’ Retirenent System of Alaska to contribute to the
system an anount cal cul ated by applying a rate of 22 percent of
the total of all base salaries paid by the municipality to
enpl oyees of the nunicipality who are active nenbers of the
system during a payroll period; reducing the rate of interest
payable by a nunicipality with a population that decreased by
nore than 25 percent between 2000 and 2010 that is delinquent in
transmtting enployee and enployer contributions to the defined
benefit plan of the Public Enployees' Retirement System of
Al aska; giving retrospective effect to the substantive
provi sions of the Act; and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD

SENATE BI LL NO. 44

SENATE STA COW TTEE -1- March 12, 2013



"An Act relating to election practices and procedures; relating
to the election of an advisory school board in a regional
educational attendance area; and providing for an effective
date."

- MOVED CSSB 44( STA) OUT OF COWMM TTEE
PREVI OUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON
Bl LL: HB 46

SHORT TI TLE: WAI VE CDL SKILL TEST FOR CERTAI N VETERANS
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) SADDLER

01/ 16/ 13 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/7/13

01/ 16/ 13 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

01/ 16/ 13 (H) STA, TRA

02/ 12/ 13 (H) STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

02/ 12/ 13 (H Moved Qut of Conmittee

02/ 12/ 13 (H) M NUTE( STA)

02/ 13/ 13 (H) STA RPT 6DP

02/ 13/ 13 (H DP: HUGHES, | SAACSON, KREI SS- TOWKI NS,
GATTI S, KELLER, LYNN

02/ 19/ 13 (H TRA AT 1: 00 PM BARNES 124

02/ 19/ 13 (H Moved Qut of Conmittee

02/ 19/ 13 (H) M NUTE( TRA)

02/ 20/ 13 (H TRA RPT 6DP

02/ 20/ 13 (H DP: LYNN, JOHNSON, KREI SS- TOWKI NS,
GATTI S, | SAACSON, P. W LSON

03/01/13 (H TRANSM TTED TO (S)

03/ 01/ 13 (H) VERSI ON: HB 46

03/ 04/ 13 (S READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

03/ 04/ 13 (S) STA, TRA

03/12/13 (S) STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

BILL: SB 48

SHORT TITLE: PERS CONTRI BUTI ONS BY MUNI Cl PALI TI ES
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) OLSON

02/ 11/ 13 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
02/ 11/ 13 (S) STA, FIN

03/12/13 (S) STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
BILL: SB 44

SHORT TI TLE: ELECTI ON PROCEDURES; REAA ADVI SCRY BOARDS
SPONSOR(s) : RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

02/ 06/ 13 (S) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 2- March 12, 2013



02/ 06/ 13 (S) STA

02/ 28/ 13 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
02/ 28/ 13 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 28/ 13 (S) M NUTE( STA)

03/ 12/ 13 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE DAN SADDLER

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of HB 46.

AMY ERI CKSON, Director

Di vi sion of Mtor Vehicles

Department of Adm nistration

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions related to HB 46.

MARC SAN SOUCI, Northwest Regional Liaison

U.S. Departnent of Defense (DOD)

Tacoma, WAshi ngton

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 46.

AVES THOWPSON, Executive Director

Al aska Trucki ng Associ ation (ATA)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 46.

DAVI D SCOTIT, staff

Senat or Donny O son

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: | ntroduced SB 48 on behal f of the sponsor.

JI M PUCKETT, Director,

D vision of Retirenment and Benefits

Depart ment of Adm nistration

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions related to SB 48.

GREG MOYER, Interim Cty Manager

Cty of Galina

Gal ena, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 48.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 3- March 12, 2013



CLI NT BEAN, Mayor

City of Pelican

Pel i can, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of SB 48.

KATH E WASSERVAN, Executive Director

Al aska Muni ci pal League

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 48.

BROOKS CHANDLER, City Attorney

Cty of Galena

Gal ena, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 48

PAUL DAUPHI NAI' S, Executive Director

Al aska Public Ofices Conm ssion (APQC)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions related to SB 44.

PADDY MCGUI RE, Deputy Director,

Federal Voting Assistance Program

Departnent of Defense

Washi ngton, D.C.

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 44.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

9:01:43 AM
CHAIR FRED DYSON called the Senate State Affairs Standing
Committee neeting to order at 9:01 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Coghill, G essel, Stednan, W el echowski, and
Chai r Dyson.

HB 46- WAI VE CDL SKILL TEST FOR CERTAI N VETERANS

9:03:16 AM
CHAI R DYSON announced the consi derati on of HB 46.

REPRESENTATI VE DAN SADDLER, sponsor of HB 46, said the bill is
predicated on the assunption that veterans have honed their
driving skills while in the mlitary and should not have to pass
the state Commrercial Mtor Vehicle Driving Skills Test (CDL).
The bill would help veterans get jobs and businesses hire
qualified drivers. Many Al aska industries require the (CDL) and
recent federal law allows this test to be bypassed.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -4- March 12, 2013



He noted the Federal Mtor Carrier Safety Admnistration is
encouraging states to allow such waivers and as of January 9,
2013, 34 states allow the waiver. Ten states are working on
simlar legislation, including Al aska, and seven states do not
currently allow the waiver. The bill directs the Departnent of
Adm nistration to adopt regulations in accordance with federa
law to all ow such wai vers.

CHAI R DYSON asked about the process of applying for a CDL in
Al aska.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER expl ained that one has to be an Al aska
resident and domciled here for 30 days, possess a regular
driver's license for a year, and pass know edge and road tests.

9: 06: 37 AM
AMY ERICKSON, Director, Division of Mtor Vehicles, Departnment
of Admnistration, introduced herself and offered to answer

guestions related to HB 46.
CHAI R DYSON asked if the departnent favored the bill.
M5. ERI CKSON sai d yes.

CHAI R DYSON asked how nuch tine a veteran would save by not
having to take the CDL.

M5. ERICKSON replied that the pass/fail test takes about two
hours and scheduling it could take a few weeks. Once an
applicant passes the test, the division wuld issue the |icense
i mredi ately.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if the bill is necessary or if the
di vi sion coul d adopt regulations without the bill.

M5. ERICKSON said legislation is needed to waive the skills
test.

SENATOR STEDMAN clarified that the witten test is still in
order; this legislation waives the driving test and vehicle
i nspection portion of the test.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER sai d agreed.

SENATOR STEDVAN noted he has a CDL.

9:09: 31 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 5- March 12, 2013



MARC SAN SOUCI, Northwest Regional Liaison, U S. Departnent of
Def ense (DOD), testified in support of HB 46. He reported that
heavy and tractor trailer driving ranks in the top ten of all
occupational specialties in the mlitary and is the second
hi ghest occupation in the Arny, wth alnost eight percent of
personnel skilled in it, and the second highest in the Mrines
with over five percent skilled in it. The Departnent of Labor
forecasts that the truck driving field will have a faster-than-
average job growh projection between 2010 and 2020.

He enphasized that taxpayers have already paid for mlitary
truck driver training through federal tax dollars to the DOD
budget .

CHAI R DYSON asked how a veteran verifies that he or she has the
mlitary training and experience.

MR SAN SOUCI explained that the mlitary is working on
docunentation to submt to the respective state agency upon
di schar ge.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER offered his understanding that a formis
under devel opnent for an officer to fill out to verify the
veteran's experience and training. The mlitary nenber's service
record woul d include which schools he or she attended.

9:12: 57 AM

SENATOR STEDMAN asked for the difference between mlitary
training and a citizen's training. H's inpression is that the
mlitary training is nore stringent.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER said he couldn't give a detailed
differentiation. He deferred the answer to M. Thonpson.

CHAI R DYSON nentioned double or "train" rigs and asked if there
is conparable mlitary equi pnent.

MR. SAN SOQUCI said he wasn't qualified to answer that question.

9:15: 03 AM

AVES THOWPSON, Executive Director, Alaska Trucking Association
(ATA), testified in support of HB 46. He related that ATA is a
stat ewi de organi zation representing over 200 businesses. He said
it is difficult to find qualified drivers of comercia
vehicles. The industry welcones returning veterans and the
opportunity to help forner mlitary drivers find enpl oynent, as
t hey have good trai ning and extensive experience.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 6- March 12, 2013



SENATOR G ESSEL asked about conparability of civilian and
mlitary |icensing.

MR. THOWSON said he wasn't altogether famliar with mlitary
training, but did know that they operate large rigs on
substandard roads. In Alaska there are private driving schools
t hat provide 4-6 weeks of classroom and on-the-road training. He
opined that civilian training was not mninmal and was basically
the sane as mlitary training.

CHAI R DYSON commented that mlitary drivers do not have to deal
wi th scal e houses and i nspecti ons.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER added that civilians do not have to deal
wi th inprovi sed expl osi on devi ces.

CHAI R DYSON asked for the will of the committee.

9:18: 09 AM
SENATOR G ESSEL noved to report HB 46, version 28-LS0263\A, from
conmmttee wth individual recomrendations and attached zero
fiscal note.

CHAI R DYSON found no objection and announced that HB 46 noved
fromthe Senate State Affairs Standing Conmttee.

9:18: 38 AM
At ease

SB 48- PERS CONTRI BUTI ONS BY MUNI Cl PALI Tl ES

9:19: 49 AM
CHAI R DYSON announced the consi derati on of SB 48.

DAVI D SCOIT, staff to Senator Donny O son, sponsor of SB 48,
introduced SB 48 on behalf of the sponsor. He said this
| egi slation seeks to provide relief to comunities hardest hit
by the "2008 salary floor" that was contained in SB 125 during
the 25th Legislature. The nmechanics of the bill are that if a
community has lost nore that 25 percent of its population
between the two censuses - 2000 and 2010, they can count their
current PERS enpl oyees in order to calculate the 22 percent that
they owe to the PERS system The bill also allows those who | ost
over 25 percent to retroactively elimnate delinquency fines and
| oner the percentage rate of 12 percent to around 4 percent.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -7- March 12, 2013



He related that the three communities nost affected are Pelican,
Gal ena, and Atka. He opined that w thout action taken, the PERS
systemwi ||l not see the noney it is owed fromthese communities.
Gal ena, for exanple, owes nore than $400,000 at 12 percent
interest and is unable to pay.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked how SB 125 wor ked.

MR, SCOIT explained that there were 160 PERS enpl oyers across
the state at the time. Their liabilities were conbined and each
was required to pay a 22 percent contribution from their 2008
fl oor.

9:23:46 AM
SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked how the three communities got into
the situation they're in.

MR. SCOIT knew that the Air Force left Galena, a Ilot of
enpl oyees and enployers left, and the PERS nunber went bel ow the
2008 f 1 oor.

SENATOR W ELECHOMNSKI asked the rationale for the 2008 fl oor

MR. SCOTT said the idea was to keep communities from "gam ng the
system and not paying their fair share into the new
consol i dat ed PERS system

9:25:16 AM
SENATOR DYSON asked for nore information about SB 125.

SENATOR STEDVAN recalled testinony regarding the concern that
communities would gane the system A nmain inpetus for pooling
the communities was the accuracy of the paynents. Pooling seened
to be the easiest solution. There was concern that comunities
woul d close the current plan and shift the responsibility to the
st ate.

He said the bill did have sone inadvertent effects, such as
communities that |ose population being unable to pay. Oher
i ssues have surfaced over time, such as exposure to the state.
Currently, there is residual discussion about returning to a
defined benefit plan.

CHAIR DYSON asked if the Departnent of Administration was
represented in the neeting.

9:28: 14 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 8- March 12, 2013



JIM PUCKETT, Director, D vision of Retirenent and Benefits,
Department of Admnistration, introduced Deputy Director Kathy
Lea.

CHAI R DYSON i nqui red about the adm nistration's position.

MR. PUCKETT replied that the adm nistration has no position on
the bill.

CHAI R DYSON asked why a conmunity that is struggling financially
shouldn't be able to carry on public services in the nost
econoni cal way, such as contracting for services.

MR. PUCKETT opi ned that they should be able to do so, as |long as
they continue to neet their present obligations.

CHAI R DYSON asked if those obligations consist of continuing to
contribute to the PERS fund in order to access retirenent
benefits for their enpl oyees.

MR. PUCKETT agreed; they voluntarily entered into an agreenent
and are obligated to pay the funds necessary to neet the
retirement benefits of their enployees.

SENATOR STEDVAN said he wasn't famliar with the conmmunities'
specific situations, but if populations continue to decline he
wondered if the "last man standing” will have to pay the bill.

MR. PUCKETT replied the comunity has to pay or it will fall on
all other payers in the state.

CHAI R DYSON said he could understand the problem in comrunities
such as Galena who fall into situations through no fault of
their own. However, he said he disagrees with the way that
Kal skag solved its financial problens. He asked how to justify
the different situations.

MR. PUCKETT said he had no suggesti ons.

SENATOR STEDMAN pointed out that this is the first time that
policy nmakers have grappled with this issue. He suggested the
situation could be the sane in Fairbanks if the mlitary noves
out .

9:33: 07 AM

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked what the adm nistration intends to do
with Galena if this legislation were not to pass.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 9- March 12, 2013



MR. PUCKETT said the admnistration didn't have another nethod
or solution in m nd.

SENATOR W ELECHOWNSKI asked if the bill is appropriate or if
there was a better way to go.

MR. PUCKETT said the bill is an attenpt to open the discussion
in order to address the problem He noted, at this tine, the
adm nistration is taking no stance.

CHAI R DYSON said his understanding is that a conmunity cannot
get away fromits contractual responsibilities unless there is a
bankr upt cy. He noted that when the responsibilities were
aggregated comunities were precluded from goi ng bankrupt

MR, PUCKETT stated that the state has already assuned the lion's
share of the financial responsibility for retirement benefits.

This bill wll add yet another financial responsibility to the
state. He reiterated that the admnistration takes no position
on the bill, but considers it the beginning of the conversation.
9: 36: 50 AM

SENATOR COGHI LL asked if any conmmunities to date in Al aska have
gone bankr upt .

MR. PUCKETT said not to his know edge.

CHAI R DYSON noted that ElIfin Cove has the status of no |onger
bei ng a recogni zed community, which is simlar to bankruptcy. He
expressed a desire to know nore about the dissolution process.

MR. PUCKETT did not know about the dissolution process.

CHAI R DYSON said the question goes beyond whether a comunity is
viable or not; it's whether the community has chosen to dissolve
itself or not.

SENATOR COGHI LL said dissolving a comunity 1S one issue;
putting a legal barrier to debt is another. He explained he was
referring to not being able to service the debt, but wanting to
remain a community, such as the situation Galena is in. He
t hought the PERS law did not excuse a community from that debt
and it would shift to other payers.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI noted a docunent from |egislative |egal
t hat says that nunicipal bankruptcies are illegal in Al aska.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -10- March 12, 2013



MR. PUCKETT said he was unaware of that opinion.

9:39:46 AM

GREG MOYER, Interim Cty Mnager, Cty of Glina, testified in
support of SB 48. He related that he was hired to restructure
and save the community of Galena, which is reeling fromthe 2008
closure of the Glina Airbase. He provided background of the
community. He said when the Galina Ar Base was realigned in
1994, the population was reduced by 20 percent to 650. Wth
closure of the Galina Airbase in 2008, the community |ost the
mlitary population, a strong econony, and s reliable enploynent
base. That sane year, Galina was required to neet the salary
fl oor or be penalized 20 percent, plus interest. Galena tried to
pay using the Muinicipal Bond Bank Authority. The population is
now under 500. He said he has devel oped an austere FY13 budget,
with total PERS salaries of about $885,000. Unfortunately, that
is about $628,000 less than the state's June 2008 salary fl oor
of $1.5 mllion.

He enphasized that the conmmunity doesn't want to shirk its
responsibility, but it will never neet the salary floor that was
set in 2008. He said if it was a one-tinme debt the bond bank
woul d provide a solution, but this is an annual paynment. There
IS no escape.

He opined that SB 48 has less to do with the noney due and nore
with doing the right thing for communities that are required to
neet an unattainable salary floor. He urged the committee to
find a legislative fix for this issue. He enphasized that SB 48
does the right thing for Galena and a few ot her communities.

9:47:35 AM
CHAI R DYSON said he appreciates the situation and what Galena is
doing to address the problem such as opening a boardi ng school.

MR. MOYER stated that the conmunity has a boarding school wth
220 kids fromacross the state.

CHAI R DYSON asked if the conmmunity has | ocal taxes.

MR. MOYER sai d they have a sales tax, but no property tax.

9:49: 16 AM

CLI NT  BEAN, Mayor, City of Pelican, echoed M. Moyer' s

sentinents. He noted that he has submtted witten testinony.
The difference between Pelican and Galena is that Pelican | ost

SENATE STA COW TTEE -11- March 12, 2013



its fish plant and half of its population since the 2008 fl oor.
He said Pelican has tried to apply solutions to their debt, but
to no avail. He noted that Pelican doesn't want to end up |ike
ElIfin Cove - no longer a viable comrunity - but it is headed
down the sane road.

9:51:11 AM

SENATOR STEDVAN asked M. Bean to nention Pelican's tax
structure. He noted that there has been work toward getting the
turbine hydro plant back on line, the fuel dock upgraded, and
the fish processing plant inproved in order to reverse the
cour se.

CHAI R DYSON asked how the community taxes itself.

MAYOR BEAN said Pelican has a property tax and a 4 percent sales
tax. The population has dropped from 127 in 2008 to 88
currently.

CHAIR DYSON noted that the conmttee received M. Bean' s
t esti nony.

9:52: 46 AM

KATH E WASSERMAN, Al aska Muni ci pal League, testified in support
of SB 48. She said, while this may not be the perfect solution

it is a step in the right direction. The bill intends to reverse
t he uni nt ended consequences of SB 125, passed in 2008.

She expl ai ned what has happened in sone smaller communities. Al
muni ci palities continue to willingly pay 22 percent of past and
present PERS service obligations, but this requirenment 1is
proving to be inpossible for small communities. She spoke to
Pelican's difficulties. She shared her perspective as a Local
Boundary Conm ssion nenber regarding the dissolution process
that some conmuniti es have gone through

9: 56: 00 AM

SENATOR STEDVAN said he wanted to broaden the discussion and get
t he popul ation counts for communities in order to get a feel for
how many are close to the 25 percent popul ati on drop.

SENATOR G ESSEL directed attention to the information in the
packet that shows the debt that communities have. She noted
Noor vi k has a debt of al nbst $128, 000.

CHAI R DYSON requested information on the comunity dissolution
process.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -12- March 12, 2013



M5. WASSERWAN said it is simlar to the means of incorporation
A municipality nmust file a petition, although there is often no
one left in the community that can fill out that petition. In
that case, it appears that the state requires them to hire a
consultant to prepare the petition, which she strongly disagrees
wit h.

CHAI R DYSON questioned how the state m ght set up a nechanismto
sort out which community is gamng the system and which is truly
in trouble.

M5. WASSERVAN stated that the governnment isn't good at |ooking
at things individually, but it would be fairly easy to determ ne
whet her a conmunity was trying to ganme the system She stressed
that the three comunities under discussion certainly aren't
trying to gane the system

10: 00: 30 AM

BROOKS CHANDLER, City Attorney, Cty of Galena, said the bill
creates an exception to the policy established in 2008. It is
l[imted through an equation based on loss in population. The
problemis that the system doesn't allow exceptions to the rule.
Galena hasn’'t tried to gane the system The legislation is a
practical cure to the one-size-fits-all policy. If inplenented

it does not expand beyond these three comunities because the
population loss is Ilimted to between 2000 and 2010. He
suggested expanding the reach of the bill to include other
comunities should not be considered right now because the three
communities require imrediate relief.

10: 03: 47 AM
CHAI R DYSON sai d he appreciated M. Chandler's efforts.

He asked M. Puckett how nuch of the PERS/ TRS unfunded liability
is as a result of bad actuarial advice years back.

MR. PUCKETT said he has heard between $1 billion and $2 billion.

CHAIR DYSON stated he would hold the bill because he had nore
guestions. One question is to the adm nistration about how | ong

it wll take to get a plan together in order to determine if
passage of the bill wll preclude sonme of the solutions the
adm nistration would like to do. Perhaps passing the bill wll

build a fire under the admnistration to help wth sone of the
policy decisions. He asked if the adm nistration could give an

SENATE STA COW TTEE -13- March 12, 2013



opinion by the next hearing in ten days on the best way to nove
forward

MR. PUCKETT said the administration has been working on this
i ssue, but doesn't have a clear proposal or solution at this
tine.

CHAI R DYSON opined that the bill is a well-tailored solution. He
held SB 48 in conmttee.

SB 44- ELECTI ON PROCEDURES; REAA ADVI SOCRY BOARDS

10: 07: 31 AM
CHAI R DYSON announced the consideration of SB 44. [CSSB 44,
version U was before the commttee.]

PAUL DAUPHI NAI'S, Executive Director, Alaska Public Ofices
Comm ssion (APOC), said he was avail able to answer questions.

SENATOR G ESSEL asked how nmoving the primary election forward
two weeks would affect those who were running for office in a
| egi sl ative session which may extend into a special session. She
wonder ed how deadl i nes woul d be affect ed.

MR. DAUPHI NAI' S said APOC s perspective is that once a candidate
has filed, reporting requirenents would be the sane for
i ncunbents and others running in the primary el ection. Regarding
newsl etters, APOCC would |ook at whether canpaigning was going
on. He deferred to legislative ethics to comrent further.

SENATOR COGHILL said his concern is that it would be awkward to
conply if the election is noved up by two weeks. However, APCC
says the filing date is the same so the only difference is that
reporting requirenments mght be conpressed a little. Legislators
woul d be affected by what could go in their newsletters. He said
he didn't hear anything from APOC that was al arm ng, but wanted
to review the ethics requirenents again

10: 12: 19 AM

PADDY MCGUI RE, Deputy Director, Federal Voting Assistance
Program Departnment of Defense, testified in support of SB 44.
He explained that Section 2 of wversion U of the bill
enfranchi ses children of fornmer Al askans who have never resided
in the US. by allowwng them to register and vote in Al aska.
Section 10 codifies in state |law the 45-day federal requirenent
to transmt ballots to mlitary and overseas voters. This, too,
is an inportant step in enfranchising overseas voters. Section

SENATE STA COW TTEE -14- March 12, 2013



12 noves the primary two weeks forward, which is inportant in
getting ballots to persons overseas.

SENATOR COGHI LL said the min conversation around Section 2
applies to mlitary famlies, but other entities would also be
enfranchi sed.

MR, MCGUI RE agr eed.
10: 15: 53 AM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if Native groups or villages have
chinmed in on noving the date.

CHAI R DYSON said no and recalled that the Division of Elections
didn't believe it was a problem

SENATOR G ESSEL commented on her experience in the North Sl ope
Bor ough. She said whaling season in that conmmunity begins at the
end of August - about the time of the primary election. She
believed that an accelerated primary date would be an advant age
in that area.

CHAI R DYSON asked for the will of the committee.

10: 17: 20 AM

SENATOR G ESSEL noved to report CS for SB 44, [version 28-
GS1983\U], from conmttee with individual recomendations and
attached zero fiscal notes.

10: 17: 34 AM
CHAI R DYSON announced that w thout objection CSSB 44(STA) noved
fromthe Senate State Affairs Standing Conmttee.

10: 17: 43 AM

There being no further business to cone before the committee,
Chair Dyson adjourned the Senate State Affairs Standing
Commttee nmeeting at 10:17 a.m

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 15- March 12, 2013



